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Mr- S s Yamauchi
April2 1, 1972

Interview # 63, Tape # 1 of 2, Track # 1

Miss Koizumi: When were you born?

Mr. Y&HﬁﬁChi: 1 was born in 1917------311’ March l7th sesetnE datCs aa s

Miss Koizumi: And where

Mr. Yamauchi: Eh...Welling, Albertae.es..l was there for aboute.....two years, 1

think, and my parents moved over to a place called....Opal, which is about forty

miles north of Edmonton....they were farmerseeee.

Miss Koizumi: HmmhmMe e e e O—P—c 00 e e e

Mr. YamaUChi: O=P=A-=Leose

Miss Koizuml: FEdmonton

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah...it's about seven miles west of Redwater...you've heard

of Redwater 0il fieldesseseil's just seven miles.. west of Redwater oil fieldSees

Miss Koizumi: And your...your father was a farmer?

Mr, Yamauchi: Yes, he was a farmer.,

Miss Koizumi: What kind of farm

Mr, Yamauchi: It was a....mixed farming....you see, in that area it's all....
mixed farming. There's NO.ee.Uhe..esay, just,ychnow.aéfgzé.iind Of graine....you
have to...you have to grow all kinds of grains and you raised.eeeeedhee..animals
like pigs, and cattle, and also poultrye.e...any of them had to do with a farm we had,
at that time, but ahesecees the parents had quite a hard life,
over there....there were no doctors then, and .e....the schoolseeeeWwas, 1'll say,
about five miles away or something, from where we used to live, then the parentseecee

kind of concerned with our education, so then they moved to another f£arm that would..

brought them closer to school. But EheeeeWe're.,se.When I went to school for the
I

first time,/never knew a word of English!

Miss Koizumi: TIs that right?

Mr, Yamauchi: Nope. Dad thought....and his way of thinking was, he did not want
us to speak with the...ssbroken, broken English, 'cause his was....and you see, he

didn't want to do that, so then he said, 'Well, you go to school...you'll learn

anyways, ' And....at first, at grade one, two and three....I hardly remember that.,.
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Mr. Peter Yamauchi
April 21, 1972

Interview # 63, Tape # 1 of 25 Irack 7 1

Mr., Yamauchi: (continuing) that life seems to be blackee..l don't seem to re-
member, yet T passed all the gradeSeessshow it happened, I don't know: And, our
district was more or less a Ukrainian districteses«s0 then, ah.e...in rather
strange way at home, Dad was....he was the old Japanese type gentleman...you
had to speak Japanese and that's all....then when you entered school, yoOuse...

learnt English..e..but then, soon as it came to recess, or lunchtime, or after

scho0leeo.We all did it in Ukrainian.

Miss Koizumi: Ohhhheeee

Mr. Yamauchi: So then we more or lesSe.eesl more less have the....there's three
languages din all WaySeeee

Miss Koizumi: Did it come to you very natural to speak three languages?

Mr. Yamauchi: Oh yes..eno trouble at all, because...you learnt when you'rc.ee.

you were a child, so when you come home, it's Jjust natural for you to speak Japanese,
even the broken Japanese.esesyou spoke JapaneseesessWhen you go to school, you learn

English during school hours and as soon as they go outeeseethesesthe other Ukrainian

people were the same, to00O...their parents spoke.e..could not speak English too well,
sO then...naturally, the kids all spoke Ukrainian or Polish, whatever the case may
be, and that way, we had three languages goin'eecees

Miss Koizumis sseeeVEry interestingeeees

Mr, Yamauchi: eesseseand then it got so that it's not lettin' your studyingeeeee

in dseseseWhen you're studying languages, up here...in school...when you have
to starte.sssas a child, and you're speaking in Japaneses.e..you're thinking in Japanese;
and then, when you're talking Ukrainian, you're thinking Ukrainianses.essyou don't

translate or anything....that's funny. Teeeeel never knew that...such things could

happen until when....during the war, when I was down to England, uhe.ee.l went

e . ;
€r as a Service Corps man, but while I was there I was more or less asked to0 come
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Mr. Peter Yamauchi

Aprdl %n, 1972
Interview # 63, Tape # 1 of 2, Track # 1

Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing)London University, where they were teaching Japanes€.ees

and...there, uheee.talking with the.eseeswith the students, or the scholars and that..

that came to that school, to learn Japanese, we started discussing these thingS.ees

these people, the scholars....because they were English....they thought in English,..
when they .....and then they had to translate that into Japanese before they could
E€heseeCheeeespeak Japanese, Wherease.ese.in our cases, it is different. And that's the
only time Ie.eseethat's the first time I found out thateesestuhesssis there such a thing
thate.eeell WaSesessrather strangee..o.actually, the first thing these boys asked.ees
'All right now, when you're speaking Japanese, yoOu..e..think in English or do you
think in Japanese?' I said, 'Oh, noe..e I think in Japanese'.....then, when you're
talking English with them, do you think...do you think in Japanese and bring it

to English? T said, 'No, I don't'eeeeebut €heesoIl couldn't do that now....'cause

I'm Offllllc}flllloff frOm Ukrainia.n. IlOW----I hear.--.I can UI].d.erStand S ome Of this

but it has DeeNesesseses. NAYDE tWeNty.eethirty.e.thirty, forty years nowe.e.e.

since I was among Ukrainians.

Miss Koizumi: Uh-huheee.do you have brothers and sisters?

Mr, Yamauchi: YeSeesesothere's....ours is a family of seven. There was two girlSeee..

two sisters....and eh, four other brothers.ess...one brother's in Cale..etwo brothers

in Calgary, sister in...in BEdmonton, two brothers in B.C. here, and a sister in

South America,

Miss XKoizumi: oouth Americal

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeaheeeoshe's in CUSO.ce.-

Miss Koizumi: CUsO?

Mr, Yamauchi: Yeah,.,.she was home last fall, just a couple of months ag0....

Miss Koizumi: g0 ,,....at home, you spoke only famanesec.eese?
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Mr. Peter Yamauchi

Interview # 63, ,Tape # 1 of 2, Track # 1

Mr. Yamauchi: Yes.

Miss Koizumi: Ande.ee..the food and all the....the way of life was Japanese?

Mr, Yamauchi: Uhe..eeno, theye....we lived over there....we~ were far from being
well-off...you ate whateveresesesuhess.whatever you can get. I remember some of
those..hungry days.eessthis was way back in the Hungry ThirtieSeeeelhee..when we
we used to uh..e.Say, grow potatoes.s.e.and...vegetables and so forth, and raise
chickens, pigs, and...so forth, but...it was so hard, those days, that we'd grow
our own potatoes, and wWe..e.you could hardly eat that....we had to sell it....

in order to buy some....say, buy our clothes, or anything like ite...so then we
can't even eat our own pot...cat our own potatoes. Same with €g25«ee288S, those
days were five cents a doze€Neeeeand €he.eee.theee.some of the....these EgES , we
were fairly small..se.syou can't carry say, thirty dozen....we used to take...we
used to carry éggs thirty-eight dozen to the crate....and take them. .. .take them
up to the store, and then you exchange that....and you can't get cash for it....
you exchange for say, tea, or SUgAreesssWhich youse.any item that you cannot Erow
on your own farm. Sure.e..e..after supper before you'd go to bed we'd geteeee
we'd say, we're hungry or something....first thing what we'll do is g0 tO theeees
basement and maybe bring a turnip and....eat turnip.....that used to be our...more
like a delicacy, lik€eeee.it WaSeeeyou know, thate...that hard up timeSeeeee

Miss Koizumis That...Hungry Thirties.... called 1t's Depression timeSeees

Mr., Yamauchi: That was the Depression, yahe...

Miss Koizumi: And then, more or less all the farmers....

l

Mr. Yamauchis Everybody was hard-up then....and €heeeefruit.ssthings like that
were just out...we just couldn't gel it...even, of course....this is out in the

farsse.out in the country, so you don't get much fruit anyways, but even then, there
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Mr. Peter Yamauchi
April 21 1972

Interview # 63, Tape # 1 of 2, Track # 1

Miss Koizumi: Like mother made special tea or things like that to cure that?

Mr, Yamauchi: YuUPeeeeeand uh.e.e.
Miss Koizumi: Can you tell me somethingeses

Mr., Yamauchi: uh...like, for instance, like, if you get sick and you can't eat

anything, that's the only time we. had rice....you know, like 0kaYle e oo

Miss Koizumi:  Okayu?

Mr., Yamauchi:  Yup, okayu. That's the only time we had...ate rice.esthe rest of

the time we baked potatoes and things like that and uh....

Miss Koizumi: Did you use Shoyo  and uh,...

Mr., Yamauchi: Uh...not so much but then...  shoyo we used, but not

VEry muCh..esWe cOuldn'teeeseeewe can't afford it!

Miss Koizumi: And also Jjust so far from Vancouver.....
Mr, Yamauchi:. Yup.

Miss Koizumi: Were there other Japanese families arow 47
Mr. Yamauchi: Yup...there were.....six .....in thise.e...in this particular district
there were six Japanese families, and there was....eh....three with children...the

others WaSeesees they were they didn't have any children....three

families with kids.....

Miss Koizumi: And these Japanese families are kind of close...to each

other?

Mr. Yamauchi: Oh yes...they were all close together, yeah

@ & " 0

Miss Koizumis I mean....distance and things....
Mr. Yamauchi: Oh distance....well...there was ADOUDGS se's s
Miss Koizumis Psychologicallyi....?

Mr. Yamauchi: Uh...yeah...psychologically, VE€S....they were all close....like,

for instance, New Year's....when you gOl....certain days when we uh...we got to-

gether....the whole....the....the.....all +++.all of 'em used to get together
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Mr. Peter Yamauchi
April 21, 1972

Interview # 63, Tape # 1 of 2, Track # 1

Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) for New Year's.......New Year's ....picnics and...and
things like that....but eh......they were all.....see, and they're all about
five, four, five, six miles apart, and there was no cars then this was
all just with a....a team....team of horses, or you walked..... there was no other
....wWay of getting around....so that you don't get...you never did get around

t00 much, SO @h...... 10'S Just as thoughg_;l--ga}--- though you are very close....
’ e o »

/when /
you know..... among them, but.t...you're.... ;n, trouble ..you know Or something
like that..,trouble is..anything like that 1t's always your next-—

door neighbour....somethink.......well, all the Japanese that lived over there,
it was almost like .

Miss Koizumi: Yeah......hmmmhhmmm.....yeah

Mr. Yamauchi: But eh...there, I remember uh....when my dad made up this...you
know how come we....he made us learn Japanese, t00.....He made up...uUSsese
you know by himself?

Misvaoizumi: Yes!

Mr., Yamauchi: And...we played that and there in one of

I remember he used to tell us TRalsicie s s s VCAN e s o's

Miss Koizumi: Yeah....

Mr. Yamauchi: And then your next door neighbour was so fa.....
half a mile apart,.... if YOU- EE Ll csevess seessesit!d only take you about

Miss Koizumi: These um.....Japanese people have been living there as long as your

PNt S ecss

Mr. Yamauchi: Ay - Y (o

Miss Koizumi: ++«-Accordingly, your your parents moved to Alberta?
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Mr. Peter Yamauchi
ABral- 2401972

Interview # 63, Tape # 1 of 2, Track c Ak

Mr. Yamauchi: Yuh...they were....they....uh.....now there's one family....one
family was there before us, in this....place called Opal. I don't know how much
before uS.....but they've all....left Opal now....they're all scattered now....

Miss Koizumi: Your father came to Canada like when?

Mr. Yamauchi: About nineteen—six or nineteen—sevelN..e.es

Miss Koizumi: Oh...long tim€ececees

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah....it's not very much after the Russo-Japanese war, and you

know, the Russo-Japanese war was nineteen-four and five, and I think he....hmmm...
when he first came here, he....went fishing, I believe....yeah...l was able to

dig that up!....There was a book, written by one of the Japanese over here...

this . He wrote a book on it, and in there....uh...they mention
my dad in there, and I read up into that, and I found out...afterwards....of course,
if T had lived in...in Alberta, I woulan‘t know these places where he...where he had
been, but....me being....in B.C. now, now I found out where he was....like Rivers

Inlet, Queen Charlotte Islands, Masset and Gibway....places like that, it's mentioned

in there, which...now, see, I explained that to my brothers and sisters, I said just
where these places were, Then he€eeeeUheses.he wWas a cook or something, too, down

Cranbrook area, and then.... He__”and then he went to Edmonton. He lived

in Edmonton for a while, then he went southern Alberta, into Qseeeefarmingese.some..e.
somebody persuaded him t0..eees.d0 SOme farming, , and I think he was kind of
half-established, and then he went back to Japan, got married, ande.eeeChee...then
they....she came over, and they farmed, I think a year or two, in this place called
Raymond Groves Barn y Where I was born, and I think they ran into some misfortune

over there with frost....they were frosted out, or something, and they lost every-

thing there, so then they went up tOeeesahe...Edmonton....these people, they said,
'‘Well, why don't you come to Edmonton...we've got a place there if you'll look

after it', and that's how we he went up north to Edmonton.

And uh....then...what is itessenineteen thirty-eight, he passed away, with cancer
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f | Mr. Peter Yamauchi
? : April 21, 1972

Interview # 63, Tape # 1 of 2, Track # 1

Mr. Yamauchi: (continued) of the livers...and uh....I was only twenty then, I
think...and the rest of...all the rest of them were all younger than me, so Mother
did have a real tough life,

Miss Koizumi: Hmmhmm...did your father tell you about him,...like, when you were
a child, likesesse?

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah, she used to tell us quite a bit, yeah,..

Miss Koizumi: About his 1life?

MI‘. YamaUChi: Yeah.-uand then’ 1111----00111‘58, wu*}D’IOW..--em, was it...I think I

was about fifteen....fifteen or sixteen, and before that....well, they were always

too busy...well, we never had a chance to talk too much, but then, afterwards....

well, site- used to talk to....then mother used to read us diaries

Miss Koizumi: Oh, he ....he wrote diaries...

Me . JYamauchi : Yezh, he kept a diary....
Miss Koizumi: I see....

Mr, Yamauchi: And uh...so that's how we got to know more about that
afterwards, and then, when I went to Japan, I was....l went back to Japan about
three times now....and I found out more about his family in Japan.

Migs Koizumi: Is his brothers and sisters still in Japan?

Mr, Yamauchj: No, no...they're all gone...there's none of them left now...ah...

E——

think eh...he's got...what? Two nephews left, 1 think, and they're all pretty

old too, now...sixty....seventies now....and I met them, and I think that just the

other day one of them passed AWAY 80.....

I‘_‘LS_M’M__&: So you are the eldest son, =0 you helped your parents when you were a

. _ child?
fr, Yamauchi: Yes.....yeah....as a matter of fact, I think we all kind of chipped

in and eh...more or less ....you krow, stayed together....and then, when he died,

then we all stuck together,...you know, and we're still stuck together, and eh...

back in about nineteen-forty, after Dad died, we.....worked on a farm zbout two or
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Mr, Yamauchi: (continuing) three....two or three years, with ny brothers, found

B e e e

out, well, there's no future on a farm...let's do something else. And uh...then

we moved, another brother and 1, we moved out to Edmonton, and we took out...you
know, training....uh...what they call war....l think they used to call it wartime

youth training, or something....wartime youth training, and I

Miss Koizumis

That was when you were like, twenty-two, twenty-three?
Yeah. e

/ That was nine...nineteen forties...l was what? twenty-two then...
Miss Kojzumi: Twenty-two...

Mr, Yamsuchi:

Mr. Yamauchi: Twenty-two,and my brother was twenty-one, and uh

»ss.We said maybe
we'll go into mechanics or something...we'll take up a trade, then

We,....COurse,
the war was on then.....yeah, the war was on,

and we were taking....we were learning

/machine...
to go into munitions I guess ‘just.. W& were doing....I took a..

. .machinist's course,
and so did my brother....but while I was taking

my training, I was called up....I
was called up to this....I had one nonth's training....military training....
Miss Koizumi: Oh, in Alberta....

Mr. Yamauchi: Yezh, in Alberta, yeah....s0 uh....so then I...I

took one month's
training, this eh...military training, and

then I came back and still took the
training, and I couldn't get a job ag&in....because....they'don't know when...I...
if I did take on s Job, they don't know when I

I gonna get called back again.,..
called back to

military....so that then my chances of em loyment is very very
getting pretty slim. And my other brother...he was a...a cripple...he had one
he's got a dislocated lip so0...hip, so he....never 80 he got
& job, and I couldn't,...znd eh

-.+.80 then I thought, 'Well,

then I- - -Welll- ee! O
way if I couldn't get a Job into the

factory or anything, eeeee.s0 then I thought,
'Well, gosh...I can

't get a job here...might as well get into the air force.'
I tried, oh...quite a few places,

tried to get into Air Force, but they wouldn't
take me,...

Pl L4 lll
| A
R ey e



" -
¥
E W e o e | Ly i el gl
i
&

Page 10

' Mr. Peter Yamauchi

April 21, 1972

Interview # 63, Tape # 1 of 2, Track j 1

Misg Koizumi:  Why?

Mr. Yamauchi: Because I think there's a racial discrimination, there,..but they
always had some excuse....they'd say, well, something wrong with your knee, or
something wrong with your ankle, or something wrong with your eyes, or gomething....
say, we can't take you in the #ir Force, but I knew.....the people thzt I....

that I hed chummed around with or ah...people who were in schoOleeecccsecss

they were being taken into the Air Force, but they wouldn't take me. But anyway,

wefound out it boiled down to racial discrimination, so then I thouzht well.....

and then I joined the Army.

Miss Koizumi: Oh...the Army took you but not Air Force....

Mr, Yemauchi: No.....
Miss Koizumi: Why Air Force is more

NOoss
Mr, Yamauchi: / yeah, I think.... think that's what it is, veah, because I don't

think there was any got into Air force during the war, but they all
got in the Army....I think there's about....a hundred...I think...I found...I read
uh,..some report once....there was about & hundred and sixty-five Nishis

in the last war......yeah.

Miss Koizumi: And they're all from different provinces...I mean, B.C, didn't eh....

My Y - o2
-LM: No-llnuBncniun--B-C- dldn't take.-'.but, I h&d jOined up juSt before

Pearl Harbor......

Miss Koizumi: Ohhh,.....

EE;_IEE&EQQi} Yeah, I joined up in October of ®42....Pearl Harbor on December
Tth.....well, I was just in my basic training when this Pearl Harbor broke out,

and eh,...there was...,.nothingeeese nothing different anything to us.... like, to
me 1t didn't matter at all...but eh....I I just took my training, thén

tien 5
took technical training/, then went overseas,



Mr. Peter Yamauchi
Al 21, 1972

Interview # 63, Tape # 1 of 2, Track A1

Miss Koizumi: Ohe.e..When was it?

Mr. Yamauchi: This....I went overseas in May...May of uh...forty...well, forty-two,

'cause I joined up in forty-one.

Miss Koizumi: Oh yes...and you went to...where did you go?

Mr. Yamauchi: Went to a place called ehss.Aldershot....Aldershot, then from there...

NOcsesseWe WeNnt OVEr 8s ae.sseheavy mechanicale...wWorkshop..e..went to Aldershoteee
then I went into a place called Sloughe...Slough, Berkshir€eeess

Miss Kolizuml: Berkshir€e.eess
Mr, Yamauchi: Yuh...think it's in Berkshire, yeah...Slougheees
Miss Kolizumli: Slougheces

Mr. Yamauchi: And then while I was in Sloughe....0h, this is...the story is going

back again....there was one who was in the Army and wrote the New

Canadian, and said he wanted a pen-pal, because he was lonely. He was in England,

he was lonely, he wanted some pen-palsesseso I didn't write but anyways, I had

his name and I put it in the bottom of my kit-bag and...when I got to England, T
wrote him, and uh...one day we were SS.....afber I wrote him, we got an answer...

1l got an answer back, he S8ldesss'Wwell, we'll see you at such and such a plaece in

Aldershot see ' which was in the canteen, WEll, I didn't see him. About

three or four months afterwards my unit had moved into Slough, and uh....there..in

this uh...while we were strawin' this barracks, one of the boys came in and

says, 'Hey, Yamauchil ‘You know whate....' he says, ' have you got a brother Or SSees.

: : like
somebody in the...in the army? There's one fellow stayingeees Just / your

name in the hospital.’

Miss Koizumi: The hospital?

Mr., Yamauchi: Yeah...in the hospital, you know.eeeit'see...number five, General....

Number five......General Hospital.....anyways, it was a hospital. SO....I went over

and seen him and all I could see is Just his face....just his eyes yere popping... ne's

all bandaged up.....he was tackled in .....in London by two sailors or something,
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Mr. Peter Yamauchi
April 21, 1972

Interview # 63, Tape # 1 of 2, Track # 1

Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) they tried to rob him, and theyeeee.kind o0f....battered....
battered him up, you know...but he's a....a judo man, too, but then there was so many

of them at it, so that's why...eshe lost. And he was all scratched up, SO he was in
hospital, and we got talkingee.eseand I told him about these letters and everythng
else..s.We were still correspondinge.eseeand €h.....we didn't know 'CEBUSEeeeseWE

were only one street apart when we were in Aldershot...we didn't....and here, we

were still writing back and forth! (laughs) Because over there, when you write

letters, you just put your name, number and your unit and c/o Army, overseas....

that's all your address. That's all your address....you could be living next
door...next street down, and you still addressed it exactly the same...We didn't

know...afterwards, we found out exactly where we were....only a street apart !

Miss Koizumi : (laughing with Mr. 23Tiuch1)
ell,

Mr, Yamauchi: Then he says, uhe..!I'm not in the +eeothls ordnance corps any more,

I'm at London university.e.e.I'm teaching....Japanese... got called up to do that. '
Andoirs he says, would you 1like to try 1t? So uh +eeeshe says uh....you

might as well 3ry iteeee..and get your higher rank and everything els€e.qso.

Miss Koigumi: Oh yeah?
SO then T said,
Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah.ese0kay, T'11 trys..and so he went back t0ees...he was discharged

from the hospital and went back and uh...three days afterwards T EOU QeesethCeceos

the adjessyou know, my O«Ce calls me out.e..he says he wants to see me...

the orderly sergeant comes out-he says, 'Hey, Yamauchi', said, 'the 0.C. wants to
Sée you.' , it sure scared me, you know, wonderin' what the heck it was....but

ANyWayeesthe uh...the 0.C. was asked to send me down to London. ...right next MOYNINGese s

that quick it wowrked! 'Go hext morning, and you go to such and such a placeses ',

'course that's the T1rst timevesoTi'd never been to London before.....and put

me on th ] :
€ train ang Sald, 'You go to such and such a placeéees'seeogave me the address...

military headquarters....from there they just eh....they don't know where I'm supposed
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) t0 g0.e.sseach man is different, see...you go and
see this man and this man takes you to this next man, the next man, he drops you
off and then he keeps ONeseesyOUu KNOW eeeeese That's how they do it...because,

it's kind of a secret thing, you know?

Miss Koizumi: This iS..eslesserelated to secret service

and
Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah! So this was done very great hush-hushu.{then finally T ended

UDee.0Oh, somewheres way down in the....underground, someplace....l didn't know what
was up SO T went in interview and gO‘t in front of a....an officer...he was a

major, and you know, he could hardly speak English? Real Japanese! he

was born and raised and educated in Japan. Yeah.
Miss Koizumi:
Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah.

Miss Koizumi: Was an Englishman?

Mr., Yamauchi: Englishman, yuh. And then he had to ask me...he asked me questions

INeseln Aeessin Japanese...everything in Japanese! Not in English at all! And then....

then T came back and T went....came back the same way....took me back the other way!

And I didn't understand how....how I got there and how I came out! Boy, that WaSe.ee.
reallye.eeseFThen he sald, wellsse.We'll see you...we'll see you soon. Let you

know how you made outes...That's all we left 1t at that and then T

went back to the unit. And about five months went Dyeeeenod Four, five months went
Dyesenothing...nothing happened, so I said 'Oh{wilé&ess I didn't pass iteseel didn't

pass the...the interview. That's all T thought. And then uh...one day, the orderly
sergeant comes in, he S8ySeess 'Hey, Yamauchi,', he says, 'this after...' — this is

about eleven 0'clocKkeses «ohe sald, 'One o'clock you have to be on this train...get

all packed up and away you go to London.'s.....Yeah, and then, when I got to Londone....
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) and then, thoet time too, they wouldn't tell me where

I was going or anything. After I got to London, they said you go and see such a
person.s..then they give you a real run-around. Finally, T wound up at

the London Universitye.s..got in front of some of these uh...instructors and...

staffeces

Miss Koizumi: Japanese?

Mr, Yamauchi: NOeeeo two Japanese and the rest were One of
Japanese Wifeeesel think heeseeeshe comes from and he taught

at school and he was in

this London Universitye first thing is, aheeeejust showed me a book and says,

'All right now,,,..simple thing....read this!' And I thought ,

11 5 I‘igh‘l:, NOWe o e
all this stuff 4,5 start off very S1Mply....says anslate that

in English', L tried to do that in English

and then.ihere's another one just the other way around. Says, 'Okay, come in
tomorrow morning...' 'Tomorvow morning at nine-thirty,' he says, 'ifou come over here
and report.' And then, when I went to report, walked into the school, he says

'Okay, now...there's your class. Now g0 to it.'? Just like that..

Miss Koizumi: They didn't tell you anything beforehand?

Mr, Yamauchi: Nope! And then he said, "All right. Now you carry on a conversation

with these boys', and they were all squadron leaders, lieutenant commanders, lieutenants,

Miss Koizumi: eeesall high rank officers?

Mr. Yamauchi: All of higher-ranked officers, and thene....

show youl had nothing
S0, when I come to think of it now../. to worry about it. They

did all the questioning.
Miss Koizumi: Ohhh,...

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah...they did all the questioning, because, you S€ee.eethey got the

word...they got the vocabulery from the other teachers....and ehesesevocabulary,
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(continuing) grammar and everything else from another teacher,

what mye.e.my Jjobe.s.and a few of the others, was just to go there and converse with

these with these EXETC1lSCesssCONVErsational eXerciSCeeee

so then, gosh...you know, they'll pop questions and...oh, everything like that.

Miss Koizumi:
Miss Koizumi:
Mr. Yamauchi:
Miss Kolzumi:
Mr. Yamauchi:

Miss Kolizumi:

TEE X -WOI'kj.ng?

Mr. Yamauchi:

How many....students in one class?
Well, in one class there's about eight stu....seven to about ten.
And how many classes did you teach?

'Bout four...four classes a dayesse

Hmmme. . s€Very day?

Uyp. But it's only half an hour a class!

Oh. (laughing with Mr. Yamauchi) Only two hours of

Yeahseeyeaheseobut, just the same can I remind you, I

never went to school...Japanese schoOl.ess

Miss Koizumi:

Mr. Yamauchi:

Miss Koizumi:

Mr. Yamauchi:

Miss Koizumi:

Mr. Yamauchi:

Fikesthat sas o

Oh, yOUesseoshow did you le@rNecelMescess?

Well, just talking with the parents...

Did you learn reading or writing?

Idttle bitees yeah, just right up to Book Three.

Hmmhmmme « « s your parents thought yoUeeees

Yeah.soethat's all I did, but then I got pushed into it,
/so then
was really sO then I had to eheesol'd

get these thick books and I'd g0eeee20 home and, you know, go back to my room and

StTUdY ee e
Miss Koizumi:

Mr. Yamauchi:

Oh. s (laughing).: o, studicd dapsronas o s

Yeaht? All these sentences and all these words and theNsssecdhNease e

and the parents, you see, they were from and then they'd have theire...

money, things like that, and I was bringing it out! So then uh....T remember
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) this Mrs.

Miss Koizumi: Was she from Tokyo?

Mr. Yamauchi: She was from Shinoga someplac€.ee.

Miss Koizumi: Oh! Oh ye€Seees

Mr., Yamauchi: Yeah...and uh....oh, that went by for two, three months, and I

was getting pretly eeeeeyOu KNOWeesootheeoewell, all kind of worried and uh....
nighttime you can't sleep properly, and then you're

Miss Koizumi: Really?

Mr. Yamauchi: eeseeStarting to shakeeeeeeeyeaheeese s

Miss Koizumi: You wereeeee worried about everything?

Mr. Yamauchi: Oh yeah.e..yeah...really worried, you know and uhe...

Miss Koizumi: Wha.eeeWha....what did you worry about?

~r. Yamauchi: No, because then...well, I think it's because I didn't have

educational...say, grounding.....didn't know how to go
about teach.... you just get thrown....in...in front of these people Welll and
as well educated, and you go in there with no education, and these guys start
poppin' questions , you tri to bessestry to do the best you can, learning words and
and things like that, you Knoweee.. and On your OWNe.e.e.eand then

the Canadian APW came along Pecsceseese

END OF INTERVIEW # 63, TAPE # 1 of 2, TRACK # 1
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Mr. Yamauchi: This ZaVEsesss a subsistance allowance; they gave you

$2.50 a day, and out of that'll be...you gotta do your own....you know....you pay
your room and your ....€heseeboard, and everything else...
Miss Koizumi: Was it enough?

Mr. Yamauchi: Well....we got by: On $2.50 a day! We got by, and then ah....

you stayed in just an ordinary flat...ordinary apartment...you...you can't stay
in a...in a good one, not at that price; you stayed at the lowestee.elUheeoe

we would take the least expensiveeee S0seeeYOU WEre freCeeeeNOccess

Miss Koizumi: NO;---:--With .the.army'-i-

Mr. Yamauchi: No. Not with the armye.s.s 8t alleesssyou were just a civilian...

you were in the uniform, but then you are a civilian. You are free to go anywhere,

you...as long as you reported to work....as long as there...you were there on time.ee.
and, you know...respectably dressed...but 1Neesin your uniform, SO....We wore

clean uniforms...like they said, but we would never‘%ave to put our boots on or

Cooe

gaiters iNeeeseeand uh....the Canadian.Army;...wow,/we used to go and pick up
Payese.pay and mail, and pick 'em up at the Canadian Army....and there was only four
Of USeessthere's @eeeefouree..uh...four Canadians in this outfit, so then we used

to call ourselves, 'The Lost Batallion'! And uh, this was more or less a....a secret
list...they call it a '@-2isl', and we were on R-list, so that's a secret kst . 80
then nobody knew exactly what we were doing, or anything....and we weren't supposed
00 BAVeeons

Miss Koizumi: Were you kind of checked Dyeeesarmy people checked from time to time?
Mr. Yamauchi: Nope...no, we were Just as....we were really free, and uh...the

Army said, well, it said....if you don't feel like you don't like it, they said,

you just come and let us know, we'll pull yOu OUteeseI just said, onceWell, I'11

do one more week....one more week, one more week, and that Just kept on going and
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) and by the sixth time 1t was six months was up...they

!
_;
E
.'-
|

gave me...they promoted me.

Miss Koizumi: Ohhheeee

Mr. Yamauchi: They promoted you every six monthSe.eeees and €heess 500N you

got used to it, and UNeaess L thouBHL gosh, this is all right. Of course, you
know, classes became eee..more classes and then there was a little more organization
at the school...it was becoming more organized, soO it...it made it easi€res.es.We had
a lot of studentSe....there, and .....we found out that they had a general course -
general course and interrogator's course, and phonetics course, and translator's,
and T was in the general course. General and interrogating courses, so uh...and
then I specialized in pronunciation esese pronunciation and intonatioNeess
that's likEeeesleasl take in the first group that comes in....and I take 'em on

say for seven weeks, or something.e.e.and then...there, you weed 'em out once,eecceee
there's where your first weeding comes alongeeese tOe.elet's say 'now,

how's this class?'ee.e.says, 'Which ones...do you think they'll all pass?' Well,
see.ssthere's that, that, and that won't pass...you can...you get so that you

could tell who'd pass and who'll make the grade and who'll not make the grade.

And eh....we had fellows like Sir Robert Craichie's son...he was ambassador to
Japan, Sir Robert Craichie's son....Admiral Wilson's son, and eh...what's his name
there...he just diedeesesSir Bernafg Russell's eh...nephew.....they were also the...

ahe..esstudents.seand you heard of Professor Darr ? He taught Japanese here.

He was our student!

Miss Koizumi: Is that right?

Mr, Yamauchi: Yeaheeeol met him when heesse.came here. Yuheeee and well

then, he was here as a professor....but he was our...he was our SS.....student,

and then he was left as an instructor, 'cause he was so good. He was left there

as an instructor. - And uh...you'll come across some Japanese-English

diCtionary? Written by Be A DUI]Ile and Yad&tllll'lll'...... Ge Ao Dmalnnn
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) eheeessDunne, was our student...Daniel and....no. Mre.

Yada, he was an instructor...and they both got together...they made up this

dictionary; and UheeeesecsssThen we had....well, one of our students came through

here...he was a BritisheeeseseUeKe trade commissioner here 1N Be Ce eeeln

Vancouver..«.lL met him once t00...he came over here

and ehe...we had one of....some of our students....one of 'em was supposed to have
interrogated Tiger Yamasta.... you know Yamasta...the fellow that WaSseeees.
UheeoeeosXecuted? Yamast@esesse

Miss Koizumi: YESeeeYESeeee

Mr. Yamauchi: Well y ONE of our SEUdeRLS NG s v e adNees -interrﬁgat{?;d hime.

Miss Koizumi: They were..... the students were all Englishmen?

Mr., Yamauchi: Yeah....all Englishmen. But €hseese the fellow who did thiSeses

who was supposed to have interrogated Tiger Yamasata...he had a photographic

memory. Jou take a dictionary....you show him that word once and
he'll
/give you a sentence.

he'll never forget it. He'll come back next morning and
But eheeeeOh, Wwe've had some real @heees..funny incidents....there too, you
know. Well, one chap would give these boys certain wordsS...se.se COme up the
next morning and bring théMeeses Emd; cos make sentenceSe.eeessssand bring it
lNe.eesbring it in and theét2§:y'll maybe read it to mes....you know, and uh....

you know, you have this word like uhees.'to wash'....wash, you have

and then he'll come back the next....next morning to me, he says

(Japanese)
/ (both laughing)

and you know....really, that shows how hard it is for them to learn Japanes€.eee.

Miss Koizumi: So you had to explain all thiS.ee...how they're different....

Mr. Yamauchi: Hmmhmmes..y€Se.eess.and once you get in those classes, you cannot

speak English.
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) If ah....if that person, if he's just brand new,

comes in first and if you want him to sit down, you have to tell him to sit down in

Japanese, and if you can't make him understand that, you have to motion. They are

that striet, you know...during the class there, you cannot speak English. SO @hesss
anyway, because this is a....you know, a conversational exercise, I learnt an

awful lot of @e...e.English history, because these fellows....see, a lot ol 'em

would b€ees.they...they'd majored in history, or majored in literaturee...or

majored in somethingeeess they're all from Cambridge and Oxford....all
Cambridge and Oxford....and we had a Sheffield.....a professor from Sheffield,

who didn't learn Japanese. Eight months...we could speak anything under the sun

in Japanes€eeess

Miss Koizumi: Eight months!

Mr., Yamauchi: Eight months... It was hard then there's

some of them there....we had one artillery officer eee...he has an....he was
another one with a photographic memorye....you could write down fifty words on a
blackboard, number each one NOese«NO WOrds gzgiz23:.;;u.know...you'd

say ice cream in the one and then you could have, say...maybe a rug in number two

and SEeEese«N0 Words related. Ande...you'll have.. you write everything down with

nis back to you, then give Nim...say, one minut€.es..say, all right NoWe...

read it....he turns right around S8y eeeeall right, what was number thirty-nine?
well,
He'll tell ya, Then we'll say....uh....{okay then, we read out say ' what

number was that on?' He'll tell you what number it was on! Some of 'em were really...

But there's desessthen, while we were there, we had theeeeeWe 10Stee... quite a
few saw enemy action....while they were going for lunch...In the doodle-bug daySes.

one of these doodle-bugs...the palister bombs, you know...the v-1?s?
Miss Koizumi: Hmmhmm :

*e e

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah? while the..esswhile they...e.0n the way

to lunch.....one 8ot killed...s.ah, another One was...uh..s..yeah, he used

he was maimed for life, and then we had another fellow theree....I think that

was the last v-2 that fell in England....and....he died under thatesesees fellow
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing)by the name of Cannon....and we had others there who....
because the studies were so intensive some of them had gone into QeeesYOU KNOWesses
' cuckoo-house'....yeah, ended up in cuckoo-house 'cause they studied so hard....and
then the others...sure enough , he went through a course, but then he went
to the front...you know, went far east, jumped....and one of them Jumped off a
cliff..eeesecause he studied so hard, you know, that uh....he Juste.e.eshe just
WeNtessseberserk eeeeeo.some of them did that. (pause) I was Just looking through
last night when I...when you...yeah, when you said you were coming, and then T
picked up Uhseesthesesssereading....glancing over some of Theessesreports....

Miss Koizumi: Ohhssvies

you know, my present age now....I think I would have done 1l R lot differente...
Oh yeSeseeel think T would.....

Miss Koizumi: But ehe....but at the beginning it was really hard for YOUss oo

Mr. Yamauchi: Oh yes, it waSeees.it was hard going.

Miss Koizumi: You thought of quitting?

Mr. Yamauchi: NOe....Somehow T Just didn'tes...I just Wanted to...kept on pushing

yOU KNOW..ee.Wanted to push.essbut T think eeeceesChecsewhen I took...when T first

retiyeee
took it on, T think I hag guts ehough I think T waSe.es«you Knowees...

had a lot of guts to take....to Jump into a thing like thate....I don't think...you
COUrSE.ssCOUrSE

know, I'd be scared to do that nowds b then, you were single....you didn't

glve a darn, and then it meant...it meant a promotion, so that's the only reason

I went in...that's the only time, I think, eeee. 1 saw one of the biggest

gambles in my life was to take on this job and....managed to get through it.

Miss Koizumi: The Job that your friend...this other man....

Mr, Yama'llChi= Yuh,

Miss Koizumi - Heseeshe was teaching too? When you were teaching?
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Mr. Yamauchi: YeSesesYUDPeososyeahoeesshe was there before...he went in there six

months before I dideecses

Miss Koizumi:  Hmmhmmeeeso
Mr. Yamauchi: And eh.....and he stayed there and then he got married....and he

married an English girleecess

Miss Koizumi: Ohhheesee
Mr. Yamauchi: And eh....he never came back....they came back to Canada. No, he
stayed there from e.e.e..through thee.sesl came back, and he was....he was
demobilized there, and then he joined the B.B.C. He joined B.B.C. and uh...the
other fellOWeeeoshe esecche quitee.e.ohe stayed there...he got demor....he got
demobbed there...and yeah, and there's another old man....by the name of....

he was a First World veteesesFirst World War vet and he went over the as

/ a colongl...

the batman...batman or something, and eh.....he went over there and.e...

WEeoessooe what happened to him.

Miss Koizumi: Hmmme... Te€ll me what happened to himees

Mr., Yamauchi: But he stay....he didn't come back. But he...he married a
English girl in the First World WaXeeececeeoe
Miss Koizumi: Oh! (laughing)

Mr. Yamauchi: How he ever did, I don't know...but ah....he got married and then

UNeseshis Wieeel think his wife died or something, and then his son had joined th€...e.

joined the Army in the Fir....the Second World War....and then he was captured at

Dieppe seee

Miss Koizumi: Really?

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah. He WaS 2 CAesesesyOu know.... a captive there for quite a

while and then he was released and then I think he went ....came back to Canada

afterwards and he made a tour with Red Cross or something for ..e.sesrecruiting

purposes Or somethingeeecess

Miss Koizumi: They say that London was kind of a good place foree...for new

peoplecses

Mr. Yamauchi: Well.....I don't know whether it was good or not...there was....
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) e...ewell, I think....socially, it wasn't bad at
all oy [ ST GO it was good because there was no [Japanese | oy, anythingese s
there was no discrimination whatsoever...one thing T never have had trouble witheses

no discrimination in the Army....along with the .....the Frencheesss. among

their own boys.esssbut I think as far as promotion went, there was....

" because we never got that promotion that eh.....that we were promised. But eh....

anyway, well we....we ended upwith as a warrant officer, and that's one of the

best ranks there is, anyway....better than a commission...CcommisSS1ONesss

Miss Koizumi: FEhe<ese was there...lots of bombing and things at that time?

Mr. Yamauchi: Oh yE€Seeese0h yeS.s.el've.had some real hair-raising experiences -

t00eeses

Miss Koizumi: What kind?

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah, I lived in a place called Brunswick Square for a while, and....
and T moved out....went to a place called Baron's Court, which is uh...0h, abc}ut”fybe

twenty minutes by tube....twenty minutes to half hour bye....uh...you know, under-

ground treéine.e.e.sWe call it the tubesseesand when I arr...wvhenever.e.eg0t 0ffececee

got off the train and started walkin' out there, I did see a whole bunch of these

red—capped officers....they were all, you know, field officers, you Knoweeee

red CaDeesseaNd ehessethe Jerries were coming Overeeees you
could see at nighttimeeese you could see these flares and then they'd come
and bomb, you KiiOWeesss.in that in that immediate area...we

didn't know why, but anyway, the house I stayed in was five storeys and you had
to climb up the stairs and eh....I thought, well....I didn't like it, so I moved
over...moved over to another place called...ah....it was in West Kensington..place
called 'The West Kensington's.e...a friend of mine told us...told me that there

was another place and if you like you can move in there, so I moved.....moved the
stuff from this five-storey house, and just took the stUeseemy kit—=bag, all my

belongings over to this new house — this was Saturday morning....and Saturday

night....well, as you know...like anybody, you.... girl-friends, you know,

and uh...went to this girl-friend's place this Saturday night and went upe..



Mr, Yamauchi: (continued) way south in London, quite a ways, and....went over
to her place and.... with = her mum and her sister....we played bridge, and then

oh, about nine-thirty came along, so I....had to go homes.sNine..ss.nine o'clock

‘must over there.....and eleven o'fclock is legal, in those daySess«S50,

nine o'clock it's getting pretty late, SO I said, 'Well, I'm going home.' And
gaid

her mother said 'No...you better not go home yet!.....}Jerries are coming overs'

Because, you know, the radioe...well, they used to call it the wireless...they

don't call it ,_/use‘}'adio, they call it 'wireless'eeeelleessltl was fading offese

she says, 'The Jerries are coming over!' Know, as soon as she said that, the

alert sounded...the alerteeces

Miss Koizumi: Oheee

Mr. Yamaughi: ...alert sounded, said...'Well, you can't go now, because Il.es.
this train has to go underneath Thames River...so then both gates will be closed
and you can't get through, so it's no use going anyway, SO you might as well wait
til the all-clear sign « S0, abouUl e e e s thisSe.ssthen we heard the anti-air guns
anti-air guns, firing....lasted about fortye...half an hour, forty-
five minutes, and eh....some of the shots were pretty close... GeTess she had
things hanging on the wall....on the wall, and it was shaking, and then, the
all-clear sounded, and well...at that time, we had tea until....5° I remember
girl said, 'Hey Pete, I don't think you can get home tonight.' What a stupid thing
to say! Said, 'Gosh, we were in the same room, we're having tea...what makes you
thinkeesss 'seesshe says, 'Something tells me that you don't...I don't think you'll
get home tonight,'...she said, 'If you go part Wa¥ and you get stuck, you can
come back andesss'sesssher brother was in RAF and he was stationed elsewhere, so

. . J . . . .
she said, 'his r roOOm...‘his room is empty, so you can stay in his room'....

I just laughed...laughed it off, then I got as far 8S....s COOK this tube and got

as far as Picadilly.....-----and Said"we don't g0 any furthem sald we 're
bombed out at that nead of not going any farther.... @00d God, she
was right! So then that.ees well, T can't go back, because it's so far

back again, and then....who knows, I may never... we have to have to come back
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) again tomorrow morning, SO leees
| T went to one of these Salvation Army....they have hostels all around .

So I goteesoI went to a hostel, and they put me up, and next morning I went €O
schoOl....I went to the...the class, this boy who told...you know, fellow that
suggested I move, he said, 'l won't be at the school today because l...S€€, WE were
bombed out last nigh£ .n that area, so we gotta do some cleaning Upees', said,
'T'11 have to (speaks Japanesey SO then, you know, when the class was over, then
T went back. By that time it was clear, so I went up and...the place where I moved

to was okay, but then, a couple of blocks down, it was bombed. And then...the

house I lived in.e.e..had had a direct hit: Now if I had stayed in that house that

night, I'd a been dead.

Miss Koizumi: So you were just SavEdeeees

Mr. Yamauchi: Hmmhmm...that's one...and.e...that...that was a regular bomb, thateoe

yeah, and then...shortly afterwards and then for....o0h, but then, every night the

Jerries were coming over...yeah. There's a real bright flare, you know...it's a

people should
[~ “see it nowadays, but at that time in England it sure scared

beautiful thing

you, because you know that if that thing is over you, that bomb's gonna come somewhere's
near that...because that's the...the mark. So they were bombing that area and we

found out afterwards Montgomery'See....Montgomery's officers were at

Baron's Court, not very far from where I....where I lived before.

Miss Koizumi: Every night they were bombing?

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah...every night, year. Every night they were bombing. S50 then
essun...we got used to it, down in that so did the others the time

was pretty well...come about the same time every night, and what we'd do is ahee

we'@ head for Qseee we'd wear our helmets and gas masks and g0 TOe..g0
in the hallway of the house, because that's the strongest...because it's got

the best support, and that's where we'd go, and....if you don't go to the...

air-raid shelter, that's where you'd go.
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But you had those air-raid.e..air-raid shelters?
Yeah! They had air-raid shelters....
You had lots of them?
HmmhmMme « « s Oh y€2heeo just all OVeresees

What kind of shelters?

They Wer€seessbricke...brick shelters, no more than about six feet

high or something.es..just so that a person could Walk INeseeseeyOU KNOWe e e e STIrONZeees

Miss Koizumi:

Mr. Yamauchi:

Miss Koizumi:

Mr. Yamauchi:

Miss Koizumi:

Mr.Yamauchi:
Miss Koizumi:

Mr. Yamauchi:

High ceiling.
Tt's not high! 'S about six feet higheecseces
Six feet high.- oo e

Yeaheoooo

Are these....underground?
NO NnoO..«eabove gro'lm(j.- ceooe
Just above groundseess

Yeahseeothat's just...more or less to protect you from shrapnel.

You know...1if a house gets bombed near that, eeeese.you don't get that shrapnel.

That's about itessesjust to protect you....protect you from shrap.ee..shrapneleecee

it's not gonna protect you from direct hits!

Miss Koizumi:

Mr., Yamauchi:

Miss Koizumi:

Mr. Yamauchi:

Is 1t large? how many people can get in?
Oh, I don't know, maybe....fifty, sixty, maybe a hundredeeecee

Ohes..huge things!

Huge things, yeah! But they're long, you know...made of brick and
thev're justees

concreteeessbut they{...they're there just to protect you from shrapnel, like€....

Miss Koizumi:
Mr. Yamauchi:

Miss Koizumi:

S0 there's nothing in iteeee

NOeessjust a place to sit dOWneeee

see lPEOple bring blanJ{E'bS and thjngs s0 e i?
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) If you had a blanket, then you could take it

yeah”--
Miss Koizumi: And just wait until the...

Mr. Yamauchi: The all-clear sounds, then you go out again. And.....oh, about
two days after this...and then the...this friend of mine, he lived across the
street from where I lived, and uh...this one particular night, oh, I was out with
this girl again...went to see a show and the ...all....uh...this alert sounded

again, and now she's stuck to go back «....like say, if she went back by bus,

she can go, but she can't take the tube...bus'd take longer.....she said, 'I'm

going to take a chance...l'm going to take the bus,' and she said, 'Never
mind Uheee 'y0000.0f course, over there you don't have tOee..every time...
take a girl back yourself because of the time problem, cause she goes home

one way and you go home the other way, just like thate...and...I went back, cause
I heard these bombs come down; you could hear it and when I got there, then eh..
the streets all...you know, they had the searchlights on it and then they were
shovelling...I thought, Gee whiz, they must have been bombing around here again,
but I wasn't theree.e..I didn't hear it, and,this other fellow next door, his
house had gone, but...it didn't explode, what it...it was a delayed action bomb,
so all it did...I think it was a five-hundred pound bombe.s.it just came right
down and eh...didn't explode...but this guy was 1n his house and this friend,

he was sitting in the...in his hallway...he'd just got up to light a cigarette,

see, and he 1lit a cigarette...he went to sit down, the stair was gone!

Miss Koizumi: It happened so quick!
he
Mr. Yamauchi: Yup! He said he just...z.heard this whistle, you know, from/ bombs

coming down, so he just stood up and got nerv....was nervous, I guess...he 1lit
a clgarette, then he was going to sit cigaretteseseshis...his steps went
aways And then that same night said, 'They chased us all over...
chased all of us out of that district, because they said a delayed action bomb
could go off any time, SO you can't stay there, so we'll have to move out.'

Now there's Qeeeed@NOtherees sV uh.ee.V-1, when it first came UPe«..Came down, one of

our students, he was in the air foree, he said...]last night this was a TH%?
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) might now...I will never forget that night, either.,

Tuesday nighte...no, it was Wednesday morning he come back..Wednesday morning he
comes to school and he says,...explains it all in Japanese...he was on patrol that
night, on patrol you know, watching for lights and that, you know, on top of the...
their...their armories, and he said, 'Last night T think that Jerry was...Jerry's

secret weapon is coming over.e.', he said, 'I think...I'm quite sure it is !' Well,
that night...that Tuesday night, I was in bed...this eh...alert...alert sounded...

and then I could hear this plane come overe..and it sounded a little differenteeces
(imitates the sound) you know, it's got...little bit different sound, and then you can
hear the ack—ack...l know ack—-ackingeess thought, 'Gee, you know...the ack-
ack is doing good tonighti' because they're bringing all these planes down, you

know...cause, you know when these planes come down, you get a grreat big explosion..

oh, enough to shake the windows down: And I thought, gosh, boy...all our anti-airguns..
antrcraft guns are doing good.e..they'll really bring the Jerries down...that's what
I thought...s.you know, next morning,
he said, he says, ' I think that secret weapon is...Jerries
are sending secret weapons over...we laughed..he says, 'No, it's one of these planes
that corﬁe..it's a small plane with a great big ball of fire in the back...in the

uite Jjust
tail, and then’ sudden...all of a sudden thev’ turn the.. then, there 's
a great big explosion.'...so next day, Wednesday...it was quiet...we thought,
well, everything's finished...you knowe.no more, but Thursday...oh, right from
morning the alert sounded and uh..it was kind of a cloudy, kind of a half-rainy day,
you know, and this guy..there's always three of us...we always used to chum together.
iamamoto, Makiyama and myself, three of us..we all used to go and lunch together...
everything,... and there was always one place we used to eat...this one day,
Yamamoto says..fellow that stayed at UBC, he says...'Nope...something tells me
We..we shouldn't go and eat there. We should go and eat elsewhere!' and uh...no,
he just won't do it..so anyway, we finally kind of more or less half broke down and

went this other way and ate, but we always wanted a beer at lunch time, so then we

headed back the same WaYees 'NO, ' says Yamamoto, he says...'No' he SaySeses 'NO,
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Mr. Yamauchi; (continuing)no, you shouldn't go there. Something tells me you
H ————————————

shouldn't go there!' He trailed behind us all the time...he wouldn't walKeeeo

you know, three acrosS together...he's always behind us, you S€€ees.

anyway, and uh....wherever you want a drink or tea in England or london, she's

drink....cause there's pubs every COITIEI, casee just like in Japanese
like Ginza [speaking in Japanese ]
everywhere. No! He wants to g0 and drink at this place. Well, anyway, we went

to this place..s.e.a place called Tottenham Court Road....we went along this

street and then we mad€eese just this nighteeceseces right turn to

g0 into Rathbone, but then...there, this Rathbone is one street and uhe ee.all

of a sudden, everything...«.you know, we heard this great big explosion...great

/Squealing- see
SCreaming «.sesand

big explosion and ev....dust flying, dirt flying...people
then we looked then this Yamamoto and 1 ‘ we
just went around the corner, there was a kreat big bookstore, big show windowee..

you know....we just went around that thing and then...you could see this window

going out like a balloon....that window was glass...went out just lik g.ballocn

VOU KNOWeeeooWe dodged 1tesee Sha o0 Ho sald,'where's'Yamamoto?..looked

around, can't see himees. said, 'Oh oh...musta got him!' and uh...we looked around

and we couldn't find himeees. and he was way ahead of us....the blast

carried him off!

Miss Koizumi: Oh really!

then
Mr. Yamauchi: Blast carried him! But/we had gone around the corner, soO we

were okay...the blast didn't catch us, but because he was behind us, he was out

in the open, so the blast caught him and carried him about fifty...sixty feet, and

he was turning circles like this..... he says, 'I told you we weren't supposed toO

come here....' and then we tell him, 'Well, why didn't you keep on and stay
with us? Then nothing would've happened tO yOUsess'ssseeeNO INJUri€Seeeess

Miss Koizumi: Very fortunate, wasn't it? -Sometiises, isn't 1t dangerous to be carried

by a blast?

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeaheseeees0, that's one of the... figure that we
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) were pretty clos€eee.

Miss Koizumi: Oh yeah....
Mr. Yamauchi: And then next day, uh....next day, t00...we went for lunch the

same place as we always go, but this other two...}Japanese Jthey said, Well, let's

go up to this other place and eat.,'...YOou went around this..seuh.e.block, just

/ihen

like this, and’we headed this way, and these guys, they went and headed this way,

and then we said,'well,'why'don'£ you boys come and have... Eat with us, said
'Well, why don't you come with us..we'll treat VOU, ' they said 'No'...

These guys went this way and we went this way, and uh...sure enough, theeee
BANGe it went downeee..and then th€eeee WEeoes. and I, we went against

the wall, you know, when these things happen, you hit the
wall..eyou go up towards....close to the wall...that's what we did, but this
Tamamoto, you know....before we could we could —he was underneath the car! He
Just dove under the car, and Uheees came after we came back to our
classes, says...'One guy's dead.' Same groupe...s.the group that went this other
way, one died and one...one's in hospital, and then he was....he was maimed,

like they said he had glass...cut glass in his lungs and everything else. Yeah,
we seen him afterwards, but ah......one....one...you.know, one ear was deaf,

and one got killed, but....that's Just our luck, you know! If we went this other

we just got scared and that's all,,

Miss Koizumi: It was the....it looks quite frightening to live in London

Mr. Yamauchi: And another one T remember...this is one more. TRIS I8 N s o

June the 30th...July4..July'lst is a Canadian holiday...Dominion Day, so we'd get

Uh....We were uh...we drank.,.we drank til about ten o'clock that night...that's
when the pubs close,..ten O0'clockaessesaid Uheesoby that time, the alert was on,

AlyWayeesoit doesn't make any difference what timesseyou're going....the alert
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) was on, cause these things were coming overi So,

we were still merrily drinking away, and then uh....as soon as the pubs closed,
we said, '"Well, let's go and have tea: We'll go and have....I'll make up some
teai' /bec§ui§ved just where they had gas....l was making some tea and....by
the time we went to bed....'course, we were feeling pretty good....we had tea
and....I forgot the name of this fellow..:Well, Pete', said, 'We don't know
whether we're gonna be alive tomorrow morning or not,'....says, 'We might
as well take everything what we can,W€ might as well... have a little fun.'
Finally, he says, 'Well, I guess everything....can't have any more fun now...
just go to sleep. Who knows, we may not be alive tomorrow morning!' He lived
upstairs and I lived on the ground floor, you knoweeseo.and uhe....and then T

this his
had uh...there was./;.I'll never forget her....Miss Starling , and this landlady,

Whﬂ'wﬁgs. Paxtonesss and uhe..I heard them calling....calling me, you know, says,

'Peted Petel' I thoughteeeos gee, what the heck are they calling meeesol
figured it'd be about maybe, four, five o'clock in the morning, youknow ....

'gee, that's funny'.....thought, 'oh, I must be dreaming' Because I had quite a bit to

drink..
and uh...then uh....this Miss Starling said 'Hey Pete! Are you alive?!' I

Didn't
said, 'Why? What's the matter?' satds Y j you hear that?'s....said, 'No.' and

then they said, 'Well, don't get up. You just stay where you are, because there's

glass all over your bed and everything else....!' said, T™is doodle-bug bomb, just fell
Just about seventy...seventy-five feet aways' And uhe....l moved around and sure
enough, I can hear glasses...glass on the...eyou can't put the light on...the
'lectricity was out and you can't put the lights on anyway! This is blackout.e.
can't put the light on...and then, anyway, I just put on my clothes and uh...

I went out and then I...hear them shovelling, you know....said, 'Anybody want

to help or aNythinge,ee. like to do something if you like.' Said, 'No, it's

Oka8y...we can handle ite.eeyou go back to bede....

~ZND_OF TAPE # 63, TAPE 1 of o TRACK # 2, for MR. PETER YAMAUCHT
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Mr. Peter Yamauchi
Apral 2l 1972

Interview # 63, Tape # 2 of 2, Track # 1

Miss Koizumi:

Mr., Yamauchi: Oh yeah....and I came back, after I offered my help, and I came
back and I tried to close my dOOresess I couldn't close my door!

you know....'gee, that's funny'....anyway, it just won't close S0.....next

morning it was light and I*wokefup, I found that this piece of board had stuck
up from the door...from the floor.essssbutesssI don't know how it could have
happened.ee.s.that....board, too, was on this side of the.e...this side of the
door....but what happened was...sthis door must have opened and then this

board came up...s.sthat was a strange thing...and thateeeee.I still couldn't
figure it out, how...that this door opened first and then the board came UDeso oo
that's why I couldn't close the dOOTesseseses50 that thing eheees..let's say,

the shelter got a direct hit....people were in the shelter and they got

't,ha't blﬂ[}d}f. S0 &6 twenty—ej.gh.t peOple gOt k:-Llled 3 I think- » .iI‘l th.is Uh- *®
shelterees.

Miss Koizumi: So there ..sthere are people being killed ever...every day...

Mr., Yamauchi: Oh yeaheeee.0h yeah, every dayeess

Miss Koizumi: Uh....like people on the street....like there were...they were
preparing to have the bombing?

Mr, Yamauchi: Uheseeesy€Seese.and when this doodlebug...these 7-1's came through,
they always came from say, south east...south and eastesse50 then, you always
walked opposite to it...for instance, people always on the opposite....that's
what they did down *ees+yOU KNOWeeesosWhen we were uUheeeee after the fall..and
then they said, when these things fall.sseesethey give you uhee...instructions

what to do; they said you can lie flat on the ground, like you know,but then..e.
never let your stomach hit the ground....yeah, when you lie...maybe on your

uh...knee, lik€eeessyowrhands and knees, but then...don't lie flat, your

stomach against the ground, because there's that shock...things like that.
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) But eh...other than that....well,

Miss Koizumi: How about the stores, and pubs and restaurants and theatres? Arg

they always open as usual?

Mr. Yamauchi: Oh yes...they're always oOpen.....sure, when you carry on your...

you carried on. Unless of...you know, something...well, you were hit and there's
NOssessllghts, no power, no nothing, well...that's it.....other than that, they
still kept on going. The pubs were open and they'd still have their singsongs
and pianos goingee.es.l think that they more or less had....I don't know whether
they had the same ideas I had —Well, who knows tomorrow? He ma&y not be alive
next day, sO....might as well have fun while you can! And then...then, workee...
work while you can, when your time has come, your time has come! You g0l
But then, if you're lucky, you justeessss.get by. There are some soldiers that
1 know who did some different thingSeeeee. he was a despatch writer.,.he
was on our uh...on the motorcycle...I think
He WaSeeess. one ol the fellows I knew.....he went through all that....
all thateeee the enemy fired everything else, he came backeeeos
okay....0n his going into the barracks, he had a collision ....he killed himself
that way.....he'd gone through all that....all that fighting....enemy fire and
eVerything €ls€esseesse50 you don't know when you're going tO.....There's another
ENEIiNEeT e oo that T..ess.he was an,. « s€Ngineer this happened in Germany...
he hung out his.... he was doing some washing.....he was doing some wWashingeee.

and then...he just got out to hang this washing and....sniper bullet came and

hit himleeess oh, it went through his laundry, ....missed him! Well,
that sounds real strange There was another one.... he was
in the signals.,. i

this happened in Germany too.....they'went/%o some farmer's place...

I think there were twenty'soldiers......you Know, one platoon.....one platoon of

them....went to this farmer's placeees. and uh....his NAME WAS e e oo .o JMonimoto..

NEeseeelNeeeelhesesshe Tan after @e.eesessthis was on a farm, so then...he ran

he

after a ChiCken--Z-Said, 'We're gonna have some chicken for supper!'s...so he

ran after this chicken. Why he ran after that chickeneeee
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Mr. ¥amauchi: (continuing) he...he said 'That chicken saved my life!' All his

CTEW....a Cerman tank fired an eighty-eight....and killed all these gUYSesshls

platoon is all shot! But just because he ran after that chicken, he was saved.

Otherwise, he'd have been with the same crowd.

Miss Koizumi: It's amazing , isn't it?

Mr., Yamau(:hi‘: Yeaheeoo

Miss Koizumi: So you didn't get injured or anything like that?

Mr. Yamauchi: NOeeeol didn't get injured or anything, noss.s..and then...by

that time you know...the end.....VE Day came along....that was a big celebration

thoughe....everybody went crazy that time.

Miss Koizumi: How was it...how did you enjoy yourself?

Mr. Yamauchi: Well, all fhey'didwas...you.know, the cops and everybody

else allowed.... well, like the pubs is open like, you know, and they were
dancing on the streets, like on Picadilly Square there...you can't move...people
are dancing, singing and Uh....UkResess.then they were carrying these mugs around
with beer....everywhere they went they were just one large....just one large
crazy thingeesssesVliees VJ Day wasn't so bad...wasn't much then, cause the war

was over on that side.

Miss Koizumi: Hmmhmme..ye8heees

Mr., Yamauchi: Yeah, then T came hom€....uh....about a year after. I came back

in forty-six....just about a year...

Miss Koizumi: Aftereee

Mr. Yamauchi: After seecafter VE DaVeeceos

Miss Koizumi: Ohhh....and you were out of Army already?

Mr, ¥Yamauchi: ThéNeeeeNOesesethen I came back and I came to Ottawa and then

|

from Ottawa I went back....came back to Edmonton....that's where I g0t My Uheee

discharge, then I worked in the Standard Iron Works, where they have that

foundry and machine shop and uh....that time I was debating whether I should stay..

stay in the Army and go into this what they call 'Interim'....Interim Army, or

take a discharge and work....but the people in Standard Iron Works, they'd say,
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) 'well,' says, 'Get your uniform off...we got a job

for you.' T started working with them and uh....then, just at the time they
were talking about the union...forming, you S€Eeessthatee.seplace wasn't...unionized...
Calgary was unionized; Calgary was getting dol...dollar an hour...everybody was
getting dollar an hour for work...seven hours, we were getting sixty—-four cents,
because it wasn't .....unionized. So, we said, Let's ....Ssome guy said, "Well,
let's unionize itl...and I thought it was a good idea and T g0t ON....got on
the executive got the first sack! (laughing) But they....they can't fire you
«eslay you off or anything because of unions....and things....they always say,
Well, T have no more work or something...theye..they laid you off......

and I got black-listed....then T started working for the unions OULSIde eeees
Miss Koizumi: Hmmmee.

Mr, Yamauchi: Yes....I can't get back to machine-shops or anything after that,
because as soon as they heard my name they said'No, no, there's not WOTKeeos',

s0 then I had to change my line of work completelVeeces oo

Miss Koizumi: Really?

Mr, Yamauchi: Yeah...then I went into UheeeeSpring-works....where they makes*
car springs?

Miss Koizomi:  Hmmhmm,..

Mr. Yamauchi: «sethen from there I went into uh...motor—mechanics...then.from

there I went +to DVA....Department of Veteran's Affairs...post-office, and then

I came here,...to Vancouver....

Miss Koizumi: To Vancouver....

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah.....and then got in with my brother-in-law's import and
export business...,

Miss Koizumi: Oh....

i‘fr- f{&mauchi: Yeah- eeee

LS —

Miss Koizumi: “Tg that Mp. Costa? He is your brother in law?

.EEL;XEEEEEEii Yeah, he's my brother-in-law,...his wife and my wife are sisters.
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iss Koizumi: T see. Hmmhmme e« e

=

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeaheooseo

Miss Koizumi: When did you get married?

Mr. Yamauchi: 1950.

Koizumi: Oh, so you came backessUhe...

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah, after I came back from the war....yup.

Miss Koizumi: So during the war you were...in London all the time....

Mr. Yamauchi: Aboutes...l was in London about three and a half years....

Miss Koizumi: Yeaheeo

Mr. Yamauchi: Yup....see, I was in the army about a total of uh....five years

in the regular army, but then I belonged to the reserve army, and T have served

with the reserve army...for about twenty....so I've got about twenty-five years ol

military service under MEeeee

Miss Koizumi: Ohe...well, is this onlyeeese

Mr. Yamauchi: That's uh...you know how....that's a part-time army thing....

and Uheeeeib'Sessyou know, civilians go out there if they want to ,,.,twice a weekees
and take training, or they don't know what to do, but Te...I didn't take any...
well, T did take training and then I went into what fthggll Quertermastereee

I was in Quartermaster there....Quartermaster...Quartermaster Sergeant...we

call it CQ...I was CQ for aboute..s..l got my long service medal...and I think uh....
anyway, at the time, I Wazaigiya...uh....youknow, the uh...Japanese—-Canadian
with a long-service /me yééﬁ:.... now I think there's....there should be

quite a few now, I think.....but you have to stay twenty-two years service before
you can get a long-service medal.

Miss Koizumi: Why uhes...you think there are not many other Japanese?

Mr, Yamauchi: 'Cause they haven't uh...served...served that much time...in...in

the army...see a lot of them did get....they were in there, maybe some of them

were in there before me, but then they quit...they never carried oOn....and Il...
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Mr., Yamauchi: (continuing) I carried on with the reserve army, so your reserve

army counts toward that servic..««50 I got my long service medal plus the
clasp to my long service medal.. Yeah.

Miss Koizumi: Were there -people in your army from B.C.?

Mr. Yamauchi: NOteeeNOtesssUnesssnot with us, but there were a number of ‘em,

but then, they weren't....they took school here...I think they had

what they called where they talked Japanes€.... and uhes.

Miss Koizumi: Oh in Canadaeees

Mr. Yamauchi: In Canada, yeah....0ver here at West Van someplac€ees..and uhee..

guess you've heard of McKenzie? He's the uh....he was the head of the the
1he <« UBC here....Professor McKenzie...and he was Colonel....Colonel at the time..e.

and he was Colonel of the school. And there's a lot of Japanese thateseseSUuzZuklee.

he 1lives in town hereessshe 1ives in SUrreye...oUzukl is a
and ItOess yeah, they're in....they're in Vancouver...and eh..
oh, there's a number of 'em who took the schoOl..eseand then they

hey
went..[?went 10 IndideeeeIndia or Malay...not to India but then to Malayee.
Malay and SIngaporCeeess

Miss Koizumi: So they really fought against the Japanese
ATy evsee

Mr, Yamauchi: Yes,...they did behind the line work
Miss Koizumi: B)elal gL ppes

Mr. Yamauchi: Fellows like Harold , he's in Winnipeg; and
Elmer y they wore these New Zealand hats, 'cause they were in....they
were in the Canadian Army, but then they were.....more or less coss

to either New Zealand or Australia or something, so they wore these

funny hats, you knows...and uh....oh, there's a whole bunch from down east

right now...they're all living down east now, Toronto area...there's quite a few

j—rl thBI‘E---...

Miss Koizumi: Ohhhisiein
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Mr. Yamauchi: I met quite a few ah...coming through, because they'd come through

Miss Koizumi: YeSeee

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah, they'd come through London and then from there they used

to branch out to go to New Delhi or uh....New Delhi, Karachi, and Singapore...that's
how they went in there. Oh yes.e..there's another man over here...Nceseene lives

in Port Moody...Kuto...Kuto is another One...he's here now...he's....1've seen

him a few times.e.the otherse...I don't....I haven't seen very many of them.

I've...met them, but you never remember their names.

Miss Koizumis Like-..like in Be.Ce 9 they-a.}.they lost prOpeI"by and ‘bh:l'_ngs like

that, right?

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeaheeo

Miss Koizumi: In Alberta nothing happened?

Mr. Yamauchi: Nope! Not in Alberta, no...nothing happened in Alberta...

Miss Koizumi: So people in Alberta justeeeekind Of....

Mr. Yamauchi: They were just ordinary peopl€eeee

Miss Kolzumi: The same as anyon€ees.

Mr. Yamauchi: They weren't...they weren't even treated as aliens....where
those that lived in B.C., 'speclally in the coast line , they were treated
88-8l1eNSeeeeOr 8SesesUlecssce

Miss Koizumi: As ces  ENEMiESesses

Mr. Yamauchi: ASe<.se8S enemies,... Whereas, we weren't

that's 1f you haven't experienced it at home T don't KnOWeeeo

my wife had experiences but I haven'teeceee

Miss Koizumi: So that youesseUhee..joining the army and things...wasn't a

natural thing....like, you knoweess

Mr. Yamauchi: This is as a...as a volunteer.....just a plain volunteer....

Miss Koizumi: You can really feel that you are Canadian and not Japanese?

Mr. Yamauchi: No, I never felt Japanese€ss...l think if Dad was living, I would

have joined up in the first day, I think, 'cause he told me to join Upee.e
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(continuing) if Dad had lived.

So you went backesss you went to high

Nos I didn't go to high school. I've only got grade eight.

Like...you went to school how many years?
Yllp- ° e juS'b grade Eight soe e
Grade eight...and then...you started to work?

And then I worked, yeah.....I had to work, because of the

!

' Hingry Thirties.

Miss Koizumi:

Mr.Yamauchi:

Miss Koizumi:

Mr. Yamauchi:

Miss Koizumi:

Mr. Yamauchi:

Yah,

I had to WorKeees s YOU KNOWee e

feah.....what kind of work did you do?

Farm. I worked on a férm helpeesssfarm...farmer's helpereeee
Oheeefarmeses

Yeah...farmer's helperesssand Dade...Dad...we lost our farm
I

!
through the Hungry Thirties, and we couldn't pay off the farm, so when Dad

lost his farm so we had to g0 out and workKeees.in the meantime, Dad got SicKeees

Miss Koizumi:
m

Mr. Yamauchi:

Oh, he was a real.....he was a real strict man...he was really

the Japanese TYPEeceeyCaheees

Miss Koizumi:
e ——————————

Mr. Yamauchi:

did he beat you if you don't listeNeeceeecss?

Oh yes....0h yeah...he was really strict and uhe....he was even

strict....when Mom left LeeeoI kind of feel sorry for Mom all the time there,

thinking that she went through all that....though she's....actually,

1s unfortunate that she lost her husband, but then

I think you know....

in a way, I think for her sake,
/jHS%; the SAlllC e e e o

maybe it was better....i don't KNnow....that's not the

wav to look at dt....
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Miss Koizumi: T 868 ssee your father tried toO discipline you?
———————————————————

Mr. Yamauchi: Yup...o0h yes, but now I can see that he was...he was doing rightees

but at the time...at the time, there....we thought well, he was...even now I

thinkeesee it was, you know...there WaSese.quite a bit Ofeesstleces
wasn't within

reason. Sometimes he was a 1ittle too far out...and he was awfully short-

temperedssesbut €heceee

Miss Koizumi: Did your father tell you that you are Japanese and things like

that....the Japanese traditions?

Mr. Yamauchi:

yeah...he mentioned that, and uh....and then watchyamacallit....then he always

used to say thateeeses that you know, what's the....samurai or something,
you know....but then, when I went to Japan they were saying that we
we do hail from thateeee that's what

they say, but how do I know? But that's the thing that the old man used to
talk about, too, you knoWeeees

Miss Koizumi: How about.ees.uh...honesty and thingseese ?

Mr. Yamauchi: Oh that....he was really strict on that....he was quite religious
TOOsses
Miss Koizumi: Oh...was he Buddhist?
Mr. Yamauchi: NOe....he was justese.straight from the bible...he was always
reading bibles...yeah, and hee..yOu KnoWe..0h yeaheesssshonesty and uhee..
that means trusts, which he was very strong on that
Miss Koizumi: Did your father say you should be ambitious or something like that?
Mr. Yamauchi: TUh...not very much at thateees.uh...well, yes

that's one thinge.e.. uh, learning Japanese....you've got to learn Japanese..
he said, 'That's gonna be one of the...gonna be one of the necessities of your
11feees’ you gotta be crazy.' That's what I thought, you
know, youseessl couldn't say that to him, but then I thought in my mind, I thought,

'Holy smoke, what are we gonna do...what are we gonna do with the Japanese language...'’
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) you know, on the farm...and then, you're living

among Ukrainians....what are you gonna do with 1t? I thoughteee there's no

use, except to talk with the parents and uh...his friends...that's all T thoughtessss

but then
that's what I first thought when I went to London

University..e..'Gee' I thought, ' who ever
thought that if I knew I was going to do that, sure...l would have...mayb€....
I'd a been more earnest in my studies..esesbut...even then, what little he did
tell us, I think that helped me towardsSeese university to gain

certain experience which others might...not have got.

Miss Koizumi: HmmhmMe.essee(pause) How about your brothers and sisters...

did they all speak Japanese?

Mr. Yamauchi: Uhee...not much, no....because after Dad...you see, they were

still young when Dad died, but eh...they still speak some Of théMeeeenot verye...
you know....mich....course, my way of speaking Japanese is because I...because,
you know, I have to study there and that's the only reason.ess

brothers' and sisters' way of talking and my way of talking...two different waysof
talkingeeee the old broken wayeeees well, not to say that
the broken wayee.. but they're not as you Know.....progressed as much

as I did....I had to go through ites.s.but when I first came back...people

were ] TR
et Cgﬁrgr%gggk ﬁggl§ggw becgﬁggng Al L had to speak Japanese...l mean

Miss Koizumi: How aboubt eeeeeec.. that union thingeeos

Mr. Yamauchi: The union?

Miss Koizumi: Yeah....you worked for unions?

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah I did...I did at the time, and uhe....l worked for them for

a while, and when I got into 8NeeeCivVilessecivil service...when I got to the

Department of Veteran's Affairs...actually, it Was .e.....union work gave me foundation

to get into DVA, because I didn't KNow...you know....bookkeeping...at moste..I

acted as secretary, you.know...secretaryatreasurer, so then, because I worked in

unions, I learned all this...we had quite a bit of it, and with that knowledge
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(continuing) ....that knowledge helped me to get into the Department

of Veteran's Affairs, then when I got ;,to the Veteran's Affairs....says, 'All

right now...in the civil service, you cannot stay in unions...either you stay

ees20 OUb...either you leave the union or you leave us...so then, that's when I had to

leave. T | thought, well, that was my WOrKee oo better hold onto my
?

work, can't stay in the union, and that's how I left the union.

Miss Koizumi: Why uh....why you cannot belong to unions

Mr., Yamauchi: I don't know why. but thate..ssthat's the policy....and you

cannot....at that timey YOu S€e€, there was no union in the civil service..now
there iSe.e...N0W, S€€...civil service has got the...they got a union...at that

time there was no union....and then, partickarly...f think, their office...you

know, the...maybe civil service union would have been different, but I was

in another union completely different, because it was Ming, Milland Smelter

workers, but now...Mine, Mill and Smelter workers are branded as Reds, as

cCOmMUNiStSeecees

Miss Koizumi: Oh yeah?

at that tim€eeee
Mr., Yamauchi: Yeah...mine, mill.. /  back then, there was a bit of...you know,

COMMUNI1SMe o o

well, it wasn't looked down as much...but mind you, they did a lot of uh...help
U0 the commnity...the union going in....and UNeeseeS0, that's how I eceeeleftese
left the union. And then uh....when I came to Vancouver, you know, the Japanese

Canadian Citizens' Association...the JCCA?

Miss KOiZU]T.Ij.: Uh—-huh---..hmmm---.

Mr. Yamauchi: Well, we had founded a JCCA in Edmonton and uh...well, I was more

or less...yeah, I had to do the executive work over there in Edmonton ssehad
L0 form a JCCA there....then when T came to Vancouvery & cousin of mine was

treasurer or something at the time, I think, for the JCAA, but then...he was in

Japan, so somebody had...

Miss Koizumi: Oh!

Mr., Yamauchi: Yeah...he was in Japan at the time....and he more or less



63: 2-1, pp: 12
Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) left it up £0 MessevdUssrweeB0 bhOtly Tossewl
was more or less 'jobbed' into Vancouver JCC treasurer, and then later on became
a secretary and a treasurer....l was there for about...l did that for two or three
years, I think, and then I became treasurer...no, secretary for uh...provincial
JCCA, and then the liason officer for national JCCA, so then that'd become too

much, too involved....and then another thing, there....at the time I was still

in the army, S€€eessl Was doing botheeee

Miss Koizumi: (laughing) You were very busSyeee.

Mr. Yamauchi: So, I figured then....you know..s..then there was others whoesse
into JCEA

you Knowe....00 come / so I thought 1'd gradually let the JCCA go and uh...O0ne

thing that kind of...uhese pleased me too, is cause I helped the JCCA...

Miss KOiZ'u_mi: (laughs) Well- ° -hOW did. they lj..ke eee l?

Mr. Yamauchi: Oh, you know.e.s..you try to..essyou can never satisfy everybody...

Miss Koizumi: Ohssvee

Mr. Yamauchi: And in the meantime, the army was getting more and more work, and

then T got promotion.s..promotion in the army, see...brought my rank
then I
UP.+sgaVve me more responsibility, so then I....ecased off JCA and/went over

ArMYyesee thought I'd better start putting all my spare time into the army....

Miss Koizumi: Hmmmme ¢ «

Mr, Yamuchi:  But uh...for a while, the JCA was....it's a good thing , but ah...
JCA NOW...it wasn'te..eisn't a....sure it's a necessity, but not as much as it

was when JCCA had taken over these relocation matters and uh...compensation and
things...see, the important part of them...the JCCA....the Japanese got the

franchise, so then...some of the...the main €heeeesjobs were done...so later .on

1t became mMOreese«SUresse iteeeoit still TS eiee

Miss Koizumi: ee0f a social clubees
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Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah..e.s50cial and of course, you know.e.they're stilles.now
m

they're start...startin' to think of, say, senior citizens home and various other...
you know, projects that they're working on...but eheee.just about the time when Iee..
when I was leaving, I thought well, those major things were gone...and then it's
MOTE e« .yOU KNOW...liason between 0old and new.... between the...younger folks

and the older folkSee..ejust about the time when I...when I got in there

[Here Mr. Yamauchi mentions Japanese names of people in the JCCA ]

see, they were the

can't get together...and before....they did have, but the

broke upe...they didn't get along too well, and then, just about the time when I got
in there, like, 1t was

we got the older folks together again, because

there was  1little bit of language barrier, alsoO....but anywaye s« s DELWEEN US

then we kind of together again, so
they worked together for a whil€.....but now I think they're kind Ofessse

they have two different groups it is... not as bad as before we came TNe e e

Miss Koizumi: Hmmmme. « « «.Wwhen was it that you came back to Vancouver?

Mr. Yamauchi: Hey?
Miss Koizumi: When...when was

Mr. Yamauchi: Fifty—-threeesees

Miss Koizumis Oh, it was fifty-thre€esessOhesecs
Mr. Yamauchi: Yeahe.esecame in fifty—-threCeeeces
Miss Koizumi: So it was around that time e.e...the fifti€Seese

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah...fifty three, yeah...fifty-three...fifty-four, and fifty-
five, T think, T was really active with the JCCA .

Miss Koizumi: Did JCCA exist during the war?

EE:_Iégégggii cecee they did have some yeSesssl think so,
they ha....but then they called it different, I think....there was another name,
but you see, that's before my tim€eee.l wouldn't know...and me being...living out

in the country, I wouldn't know these things...I didn't know that...only after
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Mr. Yamauchi: (continuing) the war, after I came back, that these things cropped

up, and I think if T had lived in Alberta all the time I guess maybe I wouldn't

have done it, cause there Was NO.eethey have no....they had such thing as a need

but it wasn't to say, urgent, as 1t was maybe in B.C.

Miss Koizumi: During the war, when you were away, lots of Japanese went to Alberta.

Mr. YarﬂauChj.: YBS---.Oh yes-lil

Miss Koizumi: But you were not there...

Mr. Yamauchi: Hey?

Miss Koizuml: But you were not in Alberta, whereas these Japanese werese...

Mr. Yamauchi: NOeesosesesosssssll0, S€Eessthey went in there during the

W8Teeeeothis is...while I was overseas, that a bunch of them had moved 1n there...

but then, I was living in another district, and I didn't Uh....50....

Miss Koizumi: Oh T se€ees
Mr. Yamauchi: eeeeS0 I didn't mix in with these people.

Miss Koizumi: Hmmmhmmme e « o

Mr. Yamauchi: And .e.sss0h, except for a few families in Edmonton.....but
those in Southern Alberta....there's a whole bunch of them back here...they're
all fishing and oh...doing all kinds of things now....whole bunch of 'em back
in tow..sesback in Vancouver, Steveston, Surrey aread NOWeees

Miss Kodizumi: Hmme e show did theye....choose those areas....like, southern
Alberta instead of northern Alberta.se...? And things like thaleeesecss

Mr. Yamauchi: Oh, I think they were more or less eh....how did that thing

work (calling to someone in background) Was it their choice, to go to southern

Alberta, the sugar beets?

Voice answers in backgroundeeese. you go on your own or you go to
Mr., Yamauchi: seeeCaPDeeessyeah, go there or go to the camp...concentration

CAllD eeewse

VOiCE: Or' you go
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Miss Koizumi: And Mrs. Yamauchi

Or you g0 On your OWNeeseyoOur' OWIl €XpENse and everything.....| conversation

continues in Japanese |

Mr. Yamauchi: Then from there they moved into Greenwoodeeess
Miss Koizumi: after your coming to Vancouver then

you Al'€ e e o yOU

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah with Niko, yes...syeah, I been with him since. Course,
that's the only reason I came out here...l came and T been

‘

here with that company, since..s.s.now we're in commercial fishing gear, selling
nets and bringing and bringing nets from Japan and...selling trolling gear. 350,
now it's 2 ..ssedirectly connected with the fishing....fishing industry. Yeah.

Miss Koizumi:  Very interesting, what different kind of jobs you went through...

Mr. Yamauchi: Oh yeah....l think maybe for some....some people think Gee whiz,

always kept on movingeesses
but now as I gtill do, I was...in conp ection with this fishing, I1'd travel
up throughee.esayese..from here to...you know, Rupert, and then to...well, Rivers
Inlet, Rupert, and to Alaska....you know, southeastern Alaska-Ketchikan,

Juneau, Randolph.s..and then south as far as....far as up to the border of
Mexico thereeees
Miss Koizumi:

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah,. « .nNOW

have to travel that...not too often, but eheeees

Miss Koizumi: Oh, so your company does trade with Uheess trading

places.

/yeah,

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeah...well see, ye sell, you know, various items for.eee

commercial fishermen...nets, and then there's the hooks, and ropes and lines
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Mr. Yamauchi:  (continuing) twines, and the lures....and lures, you see,

we bring in from Japan, and nets come from Japan.....Uh...our Golden Gate lures

for theiresess They're quite a good item, and it's well...8he..liked by the uh...by

the :
/ fishing trade, so that's that's keepin'

us quite busy----

Miss Koizumil: So you import these things and sell them to,,,all over North America

Mr., Yamauchi: Well...along the Pacific coasteses

Miss Koizumi: On...all the way Pacific coast?

Mr. Yamauchi: - Yeadheeee all the way frons.... notiseo mich: in

California yet, but then...way...from California wav up to Alaska@.....right on
the whole Pacific coast now. That's a small item, but...you know.....

Miss Koizumi: necessaryeees for fishing?

Mr. Yamauchi: Yeaheoeyeaheeoo

Miss Koizumi: Is this the company that started before the war?
Mr., Yamauchi: NOessjust fifty—twOeees
Miss Kolzumi: Oh, so you started...

Mr. Yamauchi: No, Costa started more or less.s..e.see, it was started in sixty-

two and Costa....Costa was on his own You know, Costa and another fellow,
and uh...business was getting busier, so they asked me would I come in? And I
was working at the post office and I was quite reluctant to come to B.C. then,

but eh....he wrote quite a few times, said, 'All right now, this is the last time...
or
I'm never gonna say any more', he says, ' You come/or you don'te.ees' said, this

hing
1s my last timee...I'm not going to say any/::nore eees' 50, we pulled out lock
stock and barrel, and came to Vancouver.

Miss Koizumi: Ol

Mr., Yamauchi: Course; my wife, she likes it better here...cause she was born
and raised here...she was born and raised on the coast. But now Leeenow I wouldn't
g0 back.«sI...never go back to the prairies NOoWeeeseNOe NO WaYVeeeleeoI think T 'm

quite happy in....Vancouver area....
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